
 

 

County Re-entry Task Force (CRTF) 

SFY 2016-17 REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS (RFA) 

 

Questions and Answers 

Questions have been edited for clarity.  Duplicative questions having the same answer have 
been combined. 

 

1. Question: If an existing CRTF opts to renew their current contract rather than apply to 
the new RFA, would the contract renew at the new approved 2016-2017 reimbursement 
rates for milestones/per participant? Or would the contract renew at the existing 2015-
2016 contract reimbursement rates?  

 
Answer: A contract renewal will retain the existing contract requirements, milestone 
targets, reimbursement rates, and 2015-16 award amounts. 
 
 

2. Question: If an existing CRTF applicant submits a new application as part of this RFA 
and is denied an award, what happens to the existing funding? 
 
Answer: If a new 2016-17 application for additional funding is not approved under this 
RFA, the existing CRTF may obtain up to three optional annual renewals of their 2015-
16 annual contract with no change to contract terms and conditions—including the same 
milestone targets, reimbursement rates, and 12-month award amount. 
 

 
3. Question: When the RFA states that Task Force meetings are required on a bi-monthly 

basis, does this mean that the Task Force meets twice per month or once every other 
month?  When the RFP states that case conferencing needs to be conducted bi-weekly, 
does this mean twice per week or once every other week? 

 
Answer: As per Section IX of the RFA, regarding the full CRTF meeting on a bi-monthly 
basis means once every other month (Ex. October, December, February, etc.).  The 
case conference committee meets bi-weekly means once every other week.  (Ex. 1st and 
15th or next business day of each month.) 

 
 

4. Question: With respect to the work plan, are we supposed to type into GMS the work 
plan provided as an appendix to the RFA, and then just insert our particular target 
numbers in the blanks? 

 
Answer: Yes, the CRTF Standardized Work Plan as provided as an Appendix in the RFA 
should be used to develop the work plan and enter milestone targets then copy and 
paste into GMS.   
 



 

5. Question: If a CRTF will be transitioning from a county department that was the grantee 
to a not-for-profit that has been a partner in the CRTF since its inception, should we 
apply as a new applicant or an existing one?  The new project will use the same 
partnerships and structure as the current CRTF, even continuing to operate from the 
same space. 
 

Answer: As a previous sub-contractor operating the program, please respond as an 
existing CRTF.  Include in your response any changes to CRTF structure or other 
program components, as relevant.   
 

6. Question: We are interested in potentially doing a renewal request instead of a new 
application. What should be included in the request for a renewal that would be 
submitted instead of a new application? We are planning to keep our milestone targets 
the same, but I believe we would need to update the form Appendix B1 and Budget 
given the change in reimbursement rates for different CBI groups. Given that the 
reimbursement rates have changed, but everything else remains the same, are we 
eligible to do the renewal? 

Answer: Please refer to Section I of the RFA.  Existing CRTFs may choose not to apply to 
this RFA and instead request a contract renewal that retains their 2015-16 annual 
contract requirements, milestone targets, reimbursement rates, and annual award 
amount. A request for a renewal in lieu of submitting a new application must be submitted 
by the CRTF County Co-Chair, County Chief Elected Official, District Attorney, or his/her 
designee from the CRTF jurisdiction. 
 
This request can be in a letter or memo form addressed to Jeffrey Bender, NYS DCJS, 
Deputy Commissioner, Office of Program Development and Funding stating that your 
CRTF is requesting a renewal of the existing CRTF contract and choosing not to re-apply 
with a new application.  The request must be submitted by 12:00 pm noon, September 21, 
2016 to the DCJS email box–dcjsfunding@dcjs.ny.gov - with a subject line that reads 
“CRTF Renewal Request.” Grantees will receive further instruction after the request has 
been received.  
 

7. Question: We are in the midst of converting from paper to electronic records for case file 
documentation.  According to the case file documentation audit standards, electronic 
documentation is allowable (re: the April 18, 2016 DCJS Webinar). Under this RFA, what 
specific types of documentation must be kept as paper records (under case file 
documentation requirement for Objectives #1 through 4)?  Or can everything be 
converted to electronic records with the use of scanning, electronic signatures, etc.? 
 
Answer:  The issue of case file documentation can be satisfied with paper or electronic 
records.  Refer to RFA Appendix: CRTF Standardized Work Plan for case file 
documentation requirements listed for each of the milestones.  
 

8. Question: If requesting an increase in funding based on a projected increase in 
individuals served, would an increase in CBI enrollments for individuals under DOCCS 
supervision who are not participating in the re-entry program be included? 



 

 
Answer: Target levels proposed for the CBI and employment readiness milestones may 
include individuals referred by DOCCS to the CRTFs for CBI or Employment Readiness 
Programming only if they are not referred for the full CRTF program where space in 
such programming allows. Discussion with DOCCS on anticipated need for such 
enrollments is encouraged. See Section IV. CRTF Target Population, pages 7-8.   
 

9. Question: Will there be an opportunity at a later date to request a grant increase if 
requesting a renewal of current grant now without submission of a proposal for an 
increase to funding?   

Answer: No.  The contract award amount remains the same throughout the full contract 
period, including annual contract renewals.  Award amount changes occur as a result of 
a new RFA or RFP whereby a new contract is started.   

10. Question: Can an applicant have access to other grant submissions pertaining to the 
CRTF if the applicant currently has access to GMS with another DCJS grant? 
 
Answer: No.  Access to GMS contracts is limited to an individual agency’s own records. 
 

11. Question: How many CBI and/or employment readiness program sessions are expected 
to be provided in 45 days? 
 
Answer: There is not a requirement to have a specific number of sessions within 45 days 
from enrollment. Please refer to RFA Appendix: Pre-Approved Cognitive-Behavioral and 
Job Readiness Curricula and RFA Attachment 4: Cognitive-Behavioral Intervention and 
Employment-Readiness Projection Template for guidance in determining how many 
sessions are required to reach the target completion levels of the CBI and employment 
readiness milestones during the contract year. 
 

12. Question: Should the CBI/RSW sessions be provided individually and/or in groups? 
 
Answer: Refer to RFA: Appendix: Pre-Approved Cognitive-Behavioral and Job 
Readiness Curricula for guidance on group size.  The approved curriculums are 
designed to be presented in a group setting. 
 

13. Question: Will all potential participants (referrals) in the program meet the criteria for tier 
I or will it be determined by our own intake assessment? 
 
Answer: See Section IV. CRTF Target Population of the RFA.  Only participants 
identified as Supervision Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the risk assessment prepared by NYS 
DOCCS or Special Populations (as defined in RFA) will be eligible for reimbursement 
under this program.  Referrals from DOCCS should include the risk level information. 
 

14. Question: What is the turnaround for billing?  What is the billing process? 
 
Answer: Payments are made quarterly through the submission of vouchers.   Once the 
contract is executed, payment will be made within 30 days of receipt of each quarterly 



 

voucher where accurate documentation has been provided, or upon receipt of accurate 
documentation, whichever is later.  Please see Appendix C for additional information at 
http://www.criminaljustice.ny.gov/ofpa/forms.htm 
 

15. Question: Is the full version of MRT the only MRT that is a DCJS approved CBI? There 
are other shorter MRT curricula that have also been proven to produce good outcomes 
for the people we serve. 
 
Answer: At this time, delivery of the full MRT is required.  The pricing is based on the full 
version of MRT structured around 16 defined steps (units).  See Appendix: Pre-
Approved Cognitive-Behavioral and Job Readiness Curricula on dosage and frequency 
requirements. 
 

16. Question: If an organization is awarded funding to serve people on Parole under the 
Employment Focused Services opportunity, could eligible CRTF participants join those 
CBI/RSW groups as long as CRTF grantees were only requesting reimbursement for 
their enrollment and completion under the CRTF funding and NOT the Employment 
Focused Services funding? 

Answer: Yes.  CRTF participants may join CBI/RSW groups offered by a DCJS funded 
Employment Program. However, parolees and court ordered/probation participants must 
not be co-mingled as was stated in the Employment RFP.  Additionally, it is critically 
important that there not be duplication of services provided to an individual. It is 
prohibited that both programs submit for payment for the same participant receiving the 
same service.  DCJS receives NYSID identification for all program participants and 
payment for participants is monitored. Misrepresentation or “double billing” could result 
in a negative audit finding, in which case payment would be disallowed. 

17. Question: We are debating how to increase our goals so they can be attainable and 
reimbursable.  Can an applicant propose to increase the number of intakes but maintain 
the current number of 45 day engagement milestones? Sometimes we are helping 
people with a single issue that is completed fairly quickly so that at 45 days they are on 
to other things such as employment and not directly receiving services from anyone at 
that point. Engagement requires more of the client and many factors going into their 
success at programs and in the community. 

Answer:  The proposed number of participants reaching 45 days retention must be 75% 
of the proposed intake number. (See Section V and Section XIII, Question 1 of RFA.) In 
order to claim the 45 Day Retention milestone, a participant must be actively engaged and 
receiving services based on their assessed needs at the 45-day mark. (See Appendix: 
CRTF Standardized Work Plan.) 

Non-NYC applicants must agree to serve at least forty-five percent (45%) of the moderate-
to-high risk population based on the number of DOCCS returns to their county in 2015, 
and may apply for up to 130% of their 2015-16 annual CRTF funding amount to serve 
more.  Applicants from any eligible county within New York City may propose to serve at 
least the current number served or up to 25% of the moderate-to-high risk population 
returning to the applicant’s county in 2015.  See RFA Section XIII, page 16.  



 

All applicants must enroll a minimum of thirty percent (30%) of their proposed target 
intakes into a CBI and/or an employment readiness program, such as Ready, Set, Work! 
(RSW!). All applicants must specify a proposed milestone target of at least fifty percent 
(50%) of those enrolled in a CBI or employment readiness program to complete the 
designated program(s).  Applicants may propose to enroll and complete a higher 
percentage of intakes into CBI and/or employment readiness programming within the 
established provisions and maximum funding levels described above.    

18. Question: During the webinar a presenter stated that applicants in NYC may apply to 
serve the equivalent of between 18% and 25% of the moderate to high risk releases 
from 2015.  However, I do not see the 18% minimum in the RFP. Can you please clarify: 
may we serve “at least the current number served or up to 25% of the moderate to high 
risk population” returning to our county in 2015 (as stated in the RFP) or is the number 
between 18% and 25% of the 2015 releases.  
 

Answer: NYC applicants may propose to serve at least the current number served or up 
to 25% of the moderate-to-high risk population released from DOCCS to their jurisdiction 
in 2015.  See RFA Section XIII, page 16. 

 

19. Question: Can a not-for-profit applicant partner with another local non-profit as a sub-
applicant to provide services to special populations (like women with high needs)? 

Answer:  An application may be submitted by only one primary applicant that will 
become the grantee if awarded.  One not-for-profit applicant may submit an application 
and list another not-for-profit as a consultant to provide certain specified services 
outlined in a sub-agreement, or as a sub-contractor hired to implement certain specific 
elements of the contract. Consultants or sub-contractor agencies should be obtained in 
accordance with applicable state procurement guidelines which are spelled out in 
standard contract Appendix A-1 on the DCJS website, 
http://www.criminaljustice.ny.gov/ofpa/forms.htm 

 

20. Question: When will the OWDS training be available during the new contract year? 
 
Answer: The next OWDS class is planned to start in late winter or early spring 2017. 

 

21. Question: Can we use a different CBI than T4C or MRT? If so, what would the 
reimbursement rate be?  Can a grantee be reimbursed for the completion of both RSW 
and a CBI by the same individual? 

 

Answer:  This RFA provides for the use of evidence-based programs that research has 
determined to be effective. If an applicant proposes to use an alternative program to T4C 
or MRT, a full justification with details on the program components, dosage, frequency 
and availability of certified facilitator(s) to deliver the curriculum along with research 



 

supporting the proven effectiveness of the program is required to be submitted to DCJS 
for consideration and approval.  The reimbursement rate would be determined based on 
total hours required for program completion.  For the purpose of responding to this RFA, 
use the programs listed in Appendix: Pre-Approved Cognitive-Behavioral and Job 
Readiness Curricula, unless another program has been previously approved by DCJS.    
 

Programs may provide both RSW! and a CBI, but grantees will only be reimbursed 
for one or the other program and not for both for the same individual.  

 

22. Question: If a current CRTF grantee chooses to do the renewal process instead of the 
new application (keeping our award the same) -- can we adjust the amount per line 
items (still keeping it within the total award)? 

Answer: A contract renewal will retain the existing contract requirements, milestone 
targets, reimbursement rates, and 2015-16 award amounts.  However, changes to 
budget lines within the operating budget are permissible so long as they do not exceed 
the original award amount.  These changes must be justified to DCJS during the 
standard renewal process. 
 

23. Question: What is the maximum amount of money that a county can request? 

Answer: Non-NYC applicants must agree to serve a least forty-five percent (45%) of the 
moderate-to-high risk population based on the number of DOCCS returns to their county 
in 2015 and may apply for up to 130% of their 2015-16 annual CRTF funding amount to 
serve more.  Applicants from any eligible county within New York City may apply to serve 
at least their current number of intakes and up to 25% of the moderate-to-high risk 
population based on the number of DOCCS returns to their jurisdiction in 2015.  

24. Question: If we are a not-for-profit in NYC will we need a letter from the relevant county 
DA to submit with the RFA application? 

Answer: Yes 

 
25.  Question: What happens to the employees of the current Re-Entry Task Force if the 

current contract holders and administrators do not bid on the new contract?  Are the new 
awardees required to continue the employment of the current staff? 

Answer:  No.  Employees providing services under the grant contract are determined by 
the awardee.  CRTF coordinators must meet the standardized credentials and be 
selected in collaboration with the County and DOCCS co-chairs. 

 

26. Question: In order to submit for a higher funding amount--up to 130% of current funding- 
may we propose to reduce our current intake number but increase the target levels of the 
other milestones?  
 



 

Answer:  Non-NYC applicants must propose an intake target level of at least 45% of the 
moderate-to-high risk population returning from DOCCS to their county in 2015 and may 
propose to increase target levels of the other milestones, as long as the required 
minimum percent for each milestone is met, as stated in the RFA. (See Section II and 
Section V)   (Ex: 45 day Retention is 75% of the number of intakes proposed, CBI 
enrollments are at least 30% of the number of intakes proposed, CBI completions are at 
least 50% of enrollments.) 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 


